§3500.18

evidence or the post-hearing briefs,
whichever is the last to occur.

(iii) The decision of the Administra-
tive Law Judge shall constitute the
final decision of the Department and
shall be final and binding on the par-
ties.

(6) Judicial review. (i) A person
against whom the Department has im-
posed a civil money penalty under this
part may obtain a review of the De-
partment’s final decision by filing a
written petition for a review of the
record with the appropriate United
States district court.

(ii) The petition must be filed within
30 days after the decision is filed with
the Chief Docket Clerk, Office of Ad-
ministrative Law Judges.

(7) Collection of penalties. (i) If any
person fails to comply with the Depart-
ment’s final decision imposing a civil
money penalty, the Secretary, if the
time for judicial review of the decision
has expired, may request the Attorney
General to bring an action in an appro-
priate United States district court to
obtain a judgment against the person
that has failed to comply with the De-
partment’s final decision.

(ii) In any such collection action, the
validity and appropriateness of the De-
partment’s final decision imposing the
civil penalty shall not be subject to re-
view in the district court.

(iii) The Secretary may obtain such
other relief as may be available, in-
cluding attorney fees and other ex-
penses in connection with the collec-
tion action.

(iv) Interest on and other charges for
any unpaid penalty may be assessed in
accordance with 31 U.S.C. 3717.

(8) Offset. In addition to any other
rights as a creditor, the Secretary may
seek to collect a civil money penalty
through administrative offset.

(9) At any time before the decision of
the Administrative Law Judge, the
Secretary and the servicer may enter
into an administrative settlement. The
settlement may include provisions for
interest, attorney’s fees, and costs re-
lated to the proceeding. Such settle-
ment will terminate the appearance be-
fore the Administrative Law Judge.

(o) Discretionary payments. Any bor-
rower’s discretionary payment (such as
credit life or disability insurance)
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made as part of a monthly mortgage
payment is to be noted on the initial
and annual statements. If a discre-
tionary payment is established or ter-
minated during the escrow account
computation year, this change should
be noted on the next annual statement.
A discretionary payment is not part of
the escrow account unless the payment
is required by the lender, in accordance
with the definition of ‘‘settlement serv-
ice” in §3500.2, or the servicer chooses
to place the discretionary payment in
the escrow account. If a servicer has
not established an escrow account for a
federally related mortgage loan and
only receives payments for discre-
tionary items, this section is not appli-
cable.
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§3500.18 Validity of contracts
liens.
Section 17 of RESPA (12 U.S.C. 2615)
governs the validity of contracts and
liens under RESPA.

and

§3500.19 Enforcement.

(a) Enforcement policy. It is the policy
of the Secretary regarding RESPA en-
forcement matters to cooperate with
Federal, State or local agencies having
supervisory powers over lenders or
other persons with responsibilities
under RESPA. Federal agencies with
supervisory powers over lenders may
use their powers to require compliance
with RESPA. In addition, failure to
comply with RESPA may be grounds
for administrative action by the Sec-
retary under part 24 of this title con-
cerning debarment, suspension, ineligi-
bility of contractors and grantees, or
under part 25 of this title concerning
the HUD Mortgagee Review Board.
Nothing in this paragraph is a limita-
tion on any other form of enforcement
which may be legally available.

(b) Violations of section 8 of RESPA (12
U.S.C. 2607), §$3500.14, or §3500.15. Any
person who violates §§3500.14 or 3500.15
shall be deemed to violate section 8 of
RESPA and shall be sanctioned accord-
ingly.
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